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(Witness sworn.)

Q. BY MS. LIM: Good afternoon. My name is Julie

Lim. | represent the plaintiff, along with Timo
McCandless, in this case. Can you please state
name and spell it for the record.

A. Yes. Itis Joffrey, JOFFREY. Guy, GUY. Last
name Long, LONG.

Q. Okay. Before we start, I'm going to go over s
ground rules.

A. Okay.

Q. Even though we are in an informal setting, you
testimony holds to it, everything that you are t
as if you were in a court of law, under penalty
perjury. | am entitled to your best testimony t
there anything that if you are taking, drank any
or take any drugs, to prevent you from providing
testimony today?

A. | have not.

Q. Okay. And have you taken -- has -- has your
deposition been taken before?

Yes.
Q. Approximately how many times?
A. Approximately 30 times.

Q. Okay. Within how long of a period?
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A. Within the last 12 years.

Q. Okay. So as you know, the court reporter or t he
reporter to my left will be transcribing everyth ing into a
booklet, so it is important that we don't talk o ver one
another. Your attorney will be making objection s. And if
you could just proceed to answer after he makes his
pbjections for the record. This isn't a maratho n. I'm
not here to trick you or ask you any trick quest ions. I'm
ust entitled to your opinion for which you are hired to
offer today. So you do know the difference betw een a
guess and an estimate?

A. Yes.

Q. I'm not asking for your guesses today. Howeve r,
if | do ask you a question and you need to take a break, |
do ask that you respond before taking a break.

A. Okay.

Q. Okay.

MR. GUZZETTA: Can we go off the record for just
a second?

MS. LIM: Sure.

(Off the record.)

MR. GUZZETTA: Back on the record.

Q. BY MS. LIM: Okay. So | don't have to admonis h
you as to the difference between a guess and an estimate,
correct?
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A. No, you don't.
Q. Okay. I'll give you this Notice.
(Exhibit 1 marked for identification.)
Q. BY MS. LIM: Have you seen that document?

A. Yes, | have.

Q. Okay. And when was the first time you saw thi S
document?

A. When it was provided to me by retaining counse

Q. And when?

A. |l don't recall the exact date. It was sometim e
prior to the first scheduled deposition date of October
30th.

Q. Okay.

A. But | don't recall how many days before.

Q. And it was provided to you by Mr. Guzzetta, yo ur
attorney?

A. Either Mr. Guzzetta or Mr. Ladi.

Q. Okay.

A. | don't recall which one of them sent it to me

Q. Okay. We will attach this as Exhibit No. 1. I'm
going to show you another. Before we start, whe n were you
first retained for this case?

A. | believe it was sometime -- | don't have the
exact date. You were provided with some billing records
that would show on there when | first started -- oh, |
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apologize. | have my retainer agreement. | am
apologize. | can give you the exact date. |
date we signed the retainer would be the date.
this is my original. So if you want a copy, you
welcome to, but | do need it back.
Q. So according to this agreement, it was October
17th, 2017, is when you signed it, correct?

A. Correct.

Q. Okay.

MR. McCANDLESS: I'll make a copy. I'll be righ

back.

Q. BY MS. LIM: And what was your assignment for
this case?

A. The assignment was to review various documents
and information about the case and to form opini

Q. And what are the areas that you are prepared t
testify about?

A. | have different areas, different opinions tha
I've formed. If your question was, what are the
Do you want me to break them down into areas?

Q. Sure. | mean you are expected to testify abou
certain areas involving this case, correct?

A. That's correct.

Q. And what are those areas?

A. The areas are whether or not a complete
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mean, the
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application for loan modification existed at cer
points in time. Whether or not the loan service
the standard of care. And these are not my exac
ppinions. Again, you asked for areas.

Q. I'm just asking for areas at this point.

A. Another area would be a generalized overview o
how loan servicing works. Another area would be
generalized overview of how bankruptcy affects
foreclosure. Excuse me, if | ever speak too fas
mumble, just tell me, because | tend after time
that.

Q. Me too.

Q. BY MS. LIM: 1 don't know about that.

A. The next area would be the area of the borrowe
actions in interacting with the loan servicer an
through the modification process, or attempting
through modification process. And then I think
those areas | think all my opinions would fit in
those areas that | gave you.

Q. Okay. And if additional areas pop up, just le
me know.

A. Definitely.

Q. Okay. Allright. Let me show you --

A. And I guess I'll add one other area too. This

MR. GUZZETTA: He is much worse. I'm kidding.
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makes sense, in my opinion. That would be provi
ppinions regarding other testimony that hasn't y
given such as the anticipated testimony of Thoma
or any other experts or other parties that give
that I'm in some way qualified to render an opin
Q. Okay. All right, very good. I'm going to sho
you we will mark as Exhibit 2.
(Exhibit 2 marked for identification.)

Q. BY MS. LIM: Have you seen this document befor
-- oh why don't you take a look at it and look u
are ready.

A. Sure. | have seen this.

Q. Okay. And you know that this was attached to
Richard Penno's declaration in support of Wells
motion for summary judgment?

A. | don't recall seeing it attached to that.

Q. Okay. Did this document in any way play a rol
in your opinion, in any of the opinions that you

formulated?
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MR. GUZZETTA: Objection. Vague and ambiguous.

Q. BY MS. LIM: Do you understand the question?
A. | understand the question.
Q. Okay.
A. Which opinions are you asking if it relates to ?
Q. Well, just in any of the opinions, did this
THIS IS A ROUGH DRAFT. 6
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etter play a role in forming an opinion that yo
prepared to opine today? I'm not asking forap
topic or area but did this play a role?

A. Well, it was --

MR. GUZZETTA: Objection. Vague and ambiguous.

Go ahead, Joffrey.
THE WITNESS: It was one of many letters that
were provided to the borrower by the loan servic
tis -- so it is part of the communications tha
necessary on the part of the -- it forms -- it i
the main communications that existed that occurr
the borrower.

Q. BY MS. LIM: Okay. In the very first sentence
it states, "We are responding to your recent req
mortgage assistance. At this time, we are unabl
forward with an evaluation of your current situa

What does that mean to you?

MR. GUZZETTA: Objection. The document speaks

for itself.

THE WITNESS: What that's saying, taking it
sentence at a time, "We are responding for mortg
assistance.” So my interpretation of that is th
borrower has -- has sent in or provided a loan s

with a request for mortgage assistance, and the

servicer is at that point responding to that as

uare
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a communication about something else. What they are doing
s, with that sentence, they are saying that thi s letter

s being sent to you in response to that request for --

for assistance.

Q. BY MS. LIM: Okay. Based on this letter, can you
determine the reason for ASC being unable to mov e forward
with the evaluation of plaintiff's situation?

MR. GUZZETTA: Objection. Document speaks for
tself, calls for speculation.
THE WITNESS: | can't see from this letter
specific information as to why they can't move f orward.

Q. BY MS. LIM: Okay. Would you deem this letter to
be a denial of plaintiff's loan modification app lication?

A. Actually, I am going to, before | answer that
guestion, I'd like to go back to my last answer and just
indicate that because they are saying, "We are r esponding
to your request for mortgage assistance,"” then s aying
that, "At this time, we are unable to move forwa rd," it is
clear that this letter is in response to that re quest for
mortgage assistance.

Q. Okay. Butyou don't know why they are unable to
move forward?

A. Not from this letter.

Q. Okay. So going to the follow-up question. Wo uld
you deem this letter to be a denial of plaintiff 's loan

THIS IS A ROUGH DRAFT. 8
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modification application?
A. Your guestion assumes that there is a loan

modification application, because you said, woul

d you deem

this letter -- and correct me if I'm wrong. | h eard your
guestion as, "Would you deem this letter to be a denial of
plaintiff's loan modification application?" So, for me,
to answer that "yes" or "no," we would have to e stablish
whether or not -- we would have to establish tha t there
was a loan modification application, and I'm not seeing
anything indicating that there was one at that t ime.

Q. So based on your expertise, when ASC writes an d
says that, "We are responding to your recent req uest for
mortgage assistance,” what is it -- can you opin e as to
what they were responding to?

A. | think it is -- it is clear, as | said before ,
that they are responding to a request for mortga ge
assistance.

Q. Okay. So in your expertise, does request for
mortgage assistance mean that they had filed a | oan
modification application?

A. No.

Q. Okay. Does it mean that they made a call? |
mean, how -- what does it mean to request mortga ge
assistance? When a borrower request mortgage as sistance,
in your mind, what does that entail?

THIS IS A ROUGH DRAFT. 9
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A. A borrower can request mortgage assistance in
different ways. They can -- and that's requesti
a loan servicer. They can request mortgage assi
completing a Request For Mortgage Assistance For
could call the loan servicer. They could send i
documents. And when | say that, by the way, I'm
that someone could request mortgage assistance.
doesn't mean that the servicer, that their polic
they accept all those different methods of reque
but go ahead.

Q. Soin reviewing this letter, did you investiga
as to what ASC was responding to?

A. Yes.

Q. What was it?

A. A number of documents that had been sent along
with a -- with a written request for mortgage as

Q. A written request. Did you review the written
request?

A. 1 did.

Q. And that written request was made by whom?

A. The request was from the borrower.

Q. And would it be in the form of a loan
modification application?

A. No.

Q. So what was the form of the request?
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A. It is a form. There is a document called a
Request For Mortgage Assistance.

Q. Okay. So then itis your testimony that in

writing this letter, ASC was responding to the b orrower's
request for mortgage assistance, correct?

A. Correct.

Q. And, in addition, in response in responding or in
drafting this letter, they were also responding to
documents that were provided by the plaintiff, c orrect?

A. | can't testify with accuracy to all that. In
fact, even going back on your last question, it appears
that this document by virtue of the date isinr esponse to
the request for mortgage assistance.

Q. Otherwise known as the RMA?

A. Correct.

Q. But | think | heard you say that you did
investigate what ASC had received in drafting th is
response and you said an RMA and documents?

A. | didn't actually speak to anyone at ASC to
determine what they were looking at at the time they
generated this letter. But the -- there was a - - there
was an indication that a request for mortgage as sistance
was sent on 9-17-15.

Q. Were there any documents in addition to the
request for mortgage assistance that was provide d to ASC?

THIS IS A ROUGH DRAFT. 11
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A. There were documents. | don't know if they we re
also provided on the same date.

Q. But you said you reviewed those documents,
correct?

A. Correct.

Q. Well, what were those documents?

A. They were various documents about the borrower 's
ncome and explanations about the borrower's inc ome.
Other documents related to the request for mortg age
assistance.

Q. Apart from -- I'm going call it moving forward ,
I'm going to refer to it as RMA. Is there anoth er form or
method by which a borrower can request mortgage
assistance?

A. Well, to answer that question, we would have t 0
define "can request mortgage assistance." A bor rower
obviously can request anything. And they could mail in
their request, they could fax it, they could fil | out a
form, they could call. That, however, would the n depend
on the loan servicer and what the loan servicer s method
or policy is for accepting requests for mortgage
assistance. And before you ask the next questio n, could |
just clarify one thing?

Q. Sure.

A. It is very minor, but when you handed me a

THIS IS A ROUGH DRAFT. 12
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document earlier, then you said could you give t
to your attorney. | just want to clarify that

Mr. Guzzetta is not here as my attorney. He doe
represent me.

Q. I'm sorry. Right. Exactly.

A. He retained me on behalf of his client.

Q. | misspoke.

attorney. | tried, but he keeps saying no.

loan modification application?

A. Absolutely not.

Q. Okay. What -- so what is a loan modification
application?

A. A loan modification application would be a
sufficient amount of documents to meet the requi
for an application to modify a loan.

Q. But is there a separate form entitled Loan
Modification Application?

A. That would depend on the servicer's loan
servicer.

Q. Okay. Well, we are talking about America's
Servicing Company.

A. I'm not aware that they actually have a separa

form --

MR. GUZZETTA: He won't put blame on me as an

Q. BY MS. LIM: Great. So is the RMA, in essence

hat copy
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Q. So --
A. -- for loan modification.
Q. So for all intents and purposes, a loan

modification application is the RMA?

MR. GUZZETTA: Objection. Misstates testimony.
THE WITNESS: And | disagree with what you are

saying.

Q. BY MS. LIM: Okay. So is it your testimony th at
an RMA, in and of itself, is not a loan modifica tion
application unless all supporting documents in s upport of
the RMA is completed, correct?

A. Well, there is also -- | don't think that woul d
be a complete answer to say "yes" to that. Beca use there
is also the matter that with respect to certain loans and
certain circumstances, a -- an application for | oan
modification when it is a -- when there are repe titive or
refiled applications or multiple applications, o r multiple
requests for mortgage assistance from the same b orrower,

-- let me start that answer over. | apologize.

Q. You know what? In instead of that, let me ask --
let me re-ask the question.

A. Sure.

Q. How do you distinguish a request for modificat ion
or mortgage assistance versus a loan modificatio n
application?

THIS IS A ROUGH DRAFT. 14
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A. A request for mortgage assistance is some oral
written communication to a loan servicer that a

wants assistance with repaying their mortgage.

Q. Anditis, in fact, called and it is entitled

the form Request for Mortgage Assistance, correc

A. If you are referring to that particular docume
that would be yes, that would be correct.

Q. So how does -- how is that different from a lo
modification application?

A. A loan modification application would have to
contain all the information necessary by the ser
standards to constitute an application. And in
of repetitive applications, there would have to
change in circumstance for the servicer to consi
an application for modification.

Q. Okay. So do you know in doing your homework
whether the plaintiff provided all the informati
necessary along with their RMA which was, accord
you, submitted on September 17th, 20157

A. | do know.

Q. And what is your -- what do you know about tha

A. They did not.

Q. Okay. Do you know what information was

necessary?

A. Information was --
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Q. And, again, this is with regard to ASC and the

ir

requirements, not generally speaking. So do you know the
requirements that ASC holds for what is consider ed a loan
modification application?

A. Well, | have seen the packet that they send ou t
which requests information. And then | also kno w that
because there was a previous denial, there would have to
be adequate information. And also there would h ave to be
A change in circumstances.

Q. Okay. That wasn't my question. My question i S,
do you know all the information necessary that's required
for a loan modification application, per ASC gui delines?

A. Well, that -- that would that would split into
two parts. Because you would have the informati on that
ASC would initially state that they want to cons ider
documents for possible review and possible consi deration
as a loan modification application. But then th ere are
also guidelines or standards that are -- that ar e adopted
from regular underwriting standards as to what c an be
considered.

So in some cases, a certain document could be
requested, but then that document could indicate that
further information is needed.

Q. Okay. So, again, do you know the information
that was required by ASC for the loan modificati on

THIS IS A ROUGH DRAFT. 16
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application?

MR. GUZZETTA: Objection. Vague and ambiguous,
asked and answered.

THE WITNESS: | know what was on their initial
request packet they sent out when the borrower i
about a request for mortgage assistance, and wha
are listed in there. And then -- go ahead.

Q. BY MS. LIM: Okay. But I'm referring to --

MR. GUZZETTA: Hold on. Were you finished with
your answer?

THE WITNESS: | wasn't.

MR. GUZZETTA: Okay. Let him finish his answer,
please.

THE WITNESS: Beyond that, there are additional
potential requirements based on underwriting whe
at a -- looking at documents that are submitted
request for mortgage assistance. And those unde
standards may require that additional informatio
provided.

Q. BY MS. LIM: Okay. So in your research or in

your investigation of reviewing Ms. Manantan's R
September 17th, 2015, and the documents that she
on that date, your testimony was that it was not

or not -- or incomplete, correct?

A. Incomplete and didn't show a change in
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circumstances.

Q. So, and you testified that ASC requires all th e
nformation necessary in order to make a loan mo dification
application, like in your words, complete, corre ct?

A. | testified that they require the items that t hey
provide on their initial list. And then they al SO
require -- may require additional items dependin g on what
they review from what they receive.

Q. Okay. So what's the information that ASC
requires to make a loan modification application complete?

MR. GUZZETTA: Objection. Asked and answered.

THE WITNESS: | don't have the form in front of
me that was in the exhibits, because | didn't ac tually
bring it, because my understanding is that couns el
provided you with everything that | relied upon prior to
this meeting. So | would have to look at the fo rm to --
to be able to -- because | can't remember all of the items
that they require.

Q. BY MS. LIM: Okay. So you also testified that
ASC has certain standards?

A. Correct.

Q. In, | guess, determining that that loan
modification application is complete, what are t hose
standards?

A. The ASC and most servicers for these type of

THIS IS A ROUGH DRAFT. 18
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oans follow general mortgage underwriting stand

ards. And

50 those -- those standards would be that there is a
reasonable amount of documentation to be able to analyze a
request.

Q. Okay. So what documents did you review that w ere
provided along with the RMA by plaintiff on Sept ember
17th, 20157

A. | don't recall all the documents at this momen t.
But if | can look at all the exhibits, | could - - from the
matter, | could go through and find them all for you.

Q. Okay. So based on your review of the document S
and the RMA that was provided by plaintiff on Se ptember
17th, 2015, and looking at this letter drafted b y ASC,
would you deem this a denial of her RMA?

A. The -- generally with a request for mortgage
assistance -- well, let me go over to with a loa n
modification application, when something is cons idered a
loan modification application, then that can be denied. A
request for mortgage assistance is generally han dled in
saying that with a response saying that there is nothing
that can be done at this time because it -- in g eneral, a
denial is used for an actual application.

And | do need to add something to one of my
previous answers, but tell me when you have a sp ot.
Q. So then is it your testimony or opinion that t his
THIS IS A ROUGH DRAFT. 19
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was not a denial because a full or a loan modifi cation
application was never submitted?

A. It was not a denial of an application. It was
nformation indicating that they could not move forward
based on the paperwork or documents that had bee n
submitted.

Q. What was deficient in the paperwork or documen ts
that were submitted that rendered them unable to move
forward with assitance?

A. Primarily, and that gives me a chance to add t 0
my previous answer, because you had asked me pre viously
something to the effect of what was missing and in
addition to any documents missing, what was also missing
was the fact that there was nothing showing a ch ange in
circumstances. And in this case, there was noth ing
showing -- nothing demonstrating a change of
circumstances.

Q. Can you be more particular in that?

MR. GUZZETTA: Objection. Vague and ambiguous.

THE WITNESS: 1| can, yes. If you look at the
documents from the loan servicer's analysis of t he -- of
the income in March of 2015, and then you look a t the
document that shows the loan servicer's analysis of the
income on July, | believe it is, 23rd, 2015, if you look
at that income and then you look at the document ation

THIS IS A ROUGH DRAFT. 20
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provided in the September submission, there isn’
sufficient to show a change of circumstances.

Q. BY MS. LIM: What was the income provided in
March of 20157

A. | don't have that document in front of me. Bu
f you would let me look at the exhibit, I'd be
go through them and find them for you.

Q. Okay. Can we go off the record?

MR. GUZZETTA: Yes.
(Off the record.)

Q. BY MS. LIM: Okay. So just for clarification,
the difference between an RMA and a loan modific
application is that a loan modification applicat
have all the documents in order for it to go to
underwriting, correct?

A. No --

Q. Then what's the difference?

A. -- that's not my testimony

Well, | think that it is -- | left out something
about the request for mortgage assistance that |
important too because a request for mortgage ass
could span a much wider range than just looking
modification. Mortgage assistance, as we see it

servicers, mortgage assistance, to us, doesn't |

looking for a loan modification. Mortgage assis

t anything

happy to
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be looking for referrals to counseling companies

Mortgage assistance could be considering a short sale.
Mortgage assistance could be considering a deed in lieu of
foreclosure. Mortgage could be considering a te mporary
forebearance rather than a modification. Mortga ge
assistance could mean giving the borrower option s as far

as time in order to sell their property.
Q. Okay. | get your drift. It could be more tha n
ust a loan modification application?
A. Correct.
Q. But in the RMA, doesn't it -- doesn't the
borrower indicate that they want a loan modifica tion?
A. They may or may not indicate that, depending o n
the type of loan.
Q. But isn't there a box to check off that they w ant
a loan modification application?
A. | don't recall.
Q. So, | guess, so what is the difference between
RMA and a loan modification application? This i s about my
fifth time asking it.
MR. GUZZETTA: Exactly. And it's been answered
five times. Asked and answered is the objection
THE WITNESS: And I'm happy to answer it as many

times as necessary so that you are comfortable w ith

clarity in my answer, so I'm happy to do that. The -- a
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request for mortgage assistance, and let's assum

someone checked the box that said they want a

e that

modification, is exactly that, it is a request f or
mortgage assistance. And it is an initial commu nication
of a desire for mortgage assistance along with ¢ ertain
documentation documents that may be provided in certain
circumstances.

And loan modification application is a sufficien t
set of documents to be able to place the loan in to
underwriting and in this context also a sufficie nt set of
documentation and information that demonstrates a change
in circumstances.

Q. BY MS. LIM: Okay. So with regard to
Ms. Manantan, your testimony is that there was n o change
in circumstances, correct?

A. There was no acceptable evidence of a change i n
circumstances.

Q. And what is -- what do you look at in determin ing
what a change in circumstance could be?

A. Well, as | said earlier, | started out by look ing
at the March, approximately March 2015, and | kn ew there
was a decline in March of 2015. | don't recall exactly if
the analysis of income by the loan servicer was also in
March or if it was right before that, but someti me very --
within a few weeks of the date of the denial in March of
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P015, there was a document produced by the loan servicer

that's in the exhibits that talks about what the ir
determination was of the borrower's income based on
nformation they had reviewed. And it is withi n about
five or six hundred dollars of the borrower's st atement
of --

Q. Okay. So --
MR. GUZZETTA: Joffrey, were you done with your

answer?

THE WITNESS: No, | wasn't.

MR. GUZZETTA: Please let him finish his answers

THE WITNESS: So that determination of income
that the loan servicer completed at that time wa s within
approximately $500 of the borrower's own stateme nt of what

their income was at that time.
Q. BY MS. LIM: Okay. So just for clarification,

it's your testimony --

MR. GUZZETTA: Hang on just a second. Joffrey,
were you finished with your answer? 1 think the re was
more.

THE WITNESS: Not really.

MR. GUZZETTA: Please let him finish it and then
you can ask your clarification.

THE WITNESS: And that's perhaps why the

repetitive of asking the same question, because if I do
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get a chance to finish and it is not satisfactor
glad to answer it.

Q. BY MS. LIM: No, it was satisfactory. You
testified that the difference between the income

MR. GUZZETTA: No, no, no.

THE WITNESS: That wasn't your question.

MR. GUZZETTA: That's not what he testified to,
No. 1. And No. 2, he testified he wasn't finish
his answer. You've got to let him finish.

Q. BY MS. LIM: A lot of these answers, with all
respect, do not answer the question. So if | do
you, forgive me, but if we go at this rate, we a
to be here longer than expected. So please just
the question.

MR. GUZZETTA: Well, he --

Q. BY MS. LIM: So, again, in reviewing the incom
of plaintiff, what was the change or lack of cha
circumstance?

MR. GUZZETTA: First thing --

Q. BY MS. LIM: --in your opinion.

MR. GUZZETTA: -- you are wrong that he wasn't

answering your question. He was answering your
You just cut him off about a third of the way th

answer or halfway through the answer, if | under

answer. Correct?
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Q. BY MS. LIM: So let's start over. What was th e
ack in change in circumstance?

A. Well, and again to make sure that | am answeri ng
your question, your question was what was the la ck of
change in the circumstance. Okay. Change means something
different, so, therefore, | was talking about wh at existed
before, because we can't have a change in circum stance --
and | can't answer a question about a change in
circumstance unless | tell you what the circumst ance was
first. So I'm telling you how | base this. So | think if
| skip over this, I'm not answer your question. So in
March of 2015, there was an analysis of income.

Q. Which was?

A. Which was done by the servicer and is in the
exhibits and | don't recall the exact amount, bu t they
came up with it. But | did look at it carefully and
compared it. And, again, if you want me to look at
exhibits, I'll be happy to and find it for you a nd show
you exactly what I'm talking about. So in March , You have
a circumstance determined by the servicer.

Q. Which it means income?

A. Income, right.

Q. Okay.

A. And in July, you have another analysis where t he
servicer again does a calculation about income. Then in
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September, you have a submission and there isn't
evidence showing a change in circumstances. So
say what circumstances didn't change, | believe
your question, it would be the circumstances tha
before.
Q. Okay.
A. Did | answer your question?
Q. Fair enough. | mean, I'm going to ask you a
follow-up question to that.

A. Okay.

Q. So what was the difference in income between J
and September?

A. There wasn't any evidence of a difference in
income or a change in circumstances.

Q. Do you mean by no evidence in change of
circumstances because there were no pay stubs at

A. No.

Q. What kind of evidence were you looking for or
what kind of evidence was the servicer looking f

A. Well, the -- I'll say that there wasn't
information provided that demonstrated a change
circumstance. What a servicer generally looks f
satisfactory evidence that shows a change in cir

Q. | understand that. So what evidence were they

looking for?

any
when you
that was

t existed

uly

tached?

or?

in
oris

cumstance.
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A. Exactly what | said: Satisfactory evidence th at
demonstrates a change in circumstance.

Q. What would be satisfactory evidence to
demonstrate a change in circumstance, according to ASC?

A. Okay. Well, | can give you examples from -- f rom
certain -- certain items that were provided.

Q. Okay. Well, what was not provided in this cas e?

A. Well, I'll tell you what was provided and then
what the deficiencies were. Did you want me to tell you
that?

Q. Yes.

A. Okay. So you have information provided on
request for mortgage assistance -- and I'm going from
memory; | don't have the form in front of me -- but you
have information provided on a request for mortg age
assistance that says that there is a large amoun t of
self-employment income.

Q. And just for clarification, you are referring to
the RMA that was submitted on September 17th?

A. Correct.

Q. Okay.

A. So you have a large amount of self-employment
income stated. The documentation relative to th e
self-employment consists of the 2013 partnership return or
Vis-A-Vis Homes which indicates a significant lo Ss, a
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nhumber of which | don't recall at this moment. You have
the 2014 partnership return Vis-A-Vis Homes whic h also
ndicates a significant loss. And then you have two
profit-and-loss statements covering a total of a

five-month period of time in 2015 that show a ve ry large
profit. But based on the other information, and based on
nadequacies with those profit-and-loss statemen ts, that
ncome can't really be considered.

Q. Okay. So then is it your testimony that ASC d id
this evaluation/analysis, whatever you want to c all it,
before generating this letter on September 18th, 2015?

A | don't know exactly when that analysis was do ne.

Q. Do you know if it -- if, in fact, it was done?

A. Well, there are notes -- yes, | do.

Q And what did you rely on?

A. There are notes in the loan servicer's records
that indicate no change of circumstance.

Q. But are there notes in the -- and did you revi ew
any documents indicating that ASC performed this
evaluation of income that you just testified to, was that
performed by ASC before drafting this letter on September
18th, 20157

MR. GUZZETTA: Objection. Asked and answered.
THE WITNESS: | don't know when they performed
that analysis.
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Q. BY MS. LIM: But you said you do know for a fa
that they did perform this analysis?

A. | said that the loan servicing notes indicate
different points at which they looked at documen
ndicated that there was no change in circumstan

Q. But you don't know when that evaluation was
performed?

A. | don't know when the exact evaluation was
performed, but if | look at the loan servicing n

could show you the different points there.

Q. So based on what you reviewed and based on thi

letter, is it your testimony that the reason why
weren't able to move forward with plaintiff's ev
of the situation was because there was no change
circumstance?

A. No evidence provided -- no acceptable evidence
provided of a change in circumstance.

Q. Did you speak to anyone at ASC with regard to
this determination?

A. | did not.

Q. Did you see any notes in forming your opinion
that there was -- that the information was unacc

A. Yes.

Q. Did you see anywhere in your notes why it was

unacceptable?

ct
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A. Because it didn't show a change in circumstanc e.

Q. Well, no. I think what you just explained was
that in January -- or I'm sorry, in September of 2015,
they provided profit-and-loss statements in 2015 that were
arge; those were your exact words. But it was
unacceptable. Why was the profit-and-loss state ments, why
were they considered unacceptable?

A. Those were not my words. What you just quoted as
my words were not my words.

Q. Okay. But you testified that the profit-and-I 0SS
statements representing a large profit in 2015 w as not
considered, correct?

A. | didn't testify that they weren't considered.

Q. Or they could not be considered?

A. | testified that they did not -- they were not
sufficient to show a change in circumstance.

Q. Do you know how large of a profit in 2015 that
was reported or provided to ASC?

A. | actually don't.

Q. Okay.

A. Because the way the profit-and-loss statements
were prepared, they are prepared in a manner tha titis
not possible to determine the profit for that pe riod for
the periods covered.

Q. What do you mean by "not possible"?
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A. Because they -- one profit-and-loss statement

covers a period of April 1st -- excuse me. I'd have to
ook at it, but one profit-and-loss statement co vers a
period of two months ending June 30th. Another
profit-and-loss statement covers a period of thr ee months
beginning June 1st. So the two profit-and-loss statements
pverlap. So unless you know how much the profit and loss
s for June, you can't really use these statemen ts.

Q. Okay. And how do you know that ASC made that
determination?

A. When you say "made that determination,” which
determination are you talking about?

Q. You are saying that the profit-and-loss
statements that were provided in support of a lo an
modification application could not be considered because
you just stated they overlapped. How do you kno w ASC did
that evaluation?

A. | don't personally know that ASC did the
evaluation of whether or not the profit-and-loss
statements overlapped. | made that observation.

Q. Based on what?

A. What did | base my observation on?

Q. That ASC didn't move forward with this loan
application or this RMA because of no change in
circumstances, which was based on, in large part , due to
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profit-and-loss statements in 2015 that were too large
because they overlapped. Where did you get this
nformation?

A. Well, I got information from the various loan
servicing notes that indicate that nothing -- th at
ndicate that there was no change in circumstanc e. |
performed my own analysis -- I'm sorry, just wai t. | was
waiting because | know he was showing you someth ing.

Q. No, you can continue to talk.

A. Okay. | performed my own analysis based on wh at
I've learned as a loan servicer to look at wheth er or not,
aside from ASC's opinion, what is my opinion as to why
these documents don't show a change in circumsta nce or
can't be -- can't be used to show a change in
circumstance.

Q. Okay. So borrower Ms. Manantan submitted an R MA
on September 17th. Day after, ASC generates thi s letter
saying that they can't move forward. And it is your
opinion that they couldn't move forward because of
insufficient evidence to show a change in circum stance,
correct?

A. Correct.

Q. Okay. But you have no personal knowledge that
ASC performed this evaluation before they drafte d this
letter, correct? And I'm referring to the lette ron
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September 18th.

A. | don't know what analysis or evaluation that
they performed prior to drafting this letter.

Q. Okay. So I'm going to show you --

A. And I'll add to that answer in saying that if I

ooked at the loan servicing notes, it might act ually show

on the 17th or the 18th an entry for no change i n

circumstance or some other -- some other determi nation,

put | didn't -- | don't recall those notes at th IS moment.
Q. In order to determine that certain

profit-and-loss statements can't be considered w ith this

case, your opinion is because they overlapped an d it was

impossible, it was an impossibility for profits to have

been made based on what was provided in these
profit-and-loss statements, correct?

A. That's not completely correct.

Q. Then why couldn't -- why -- in your mind, why IS
it that the profit-and-loss statements were not
sufficient?

A. What | gave you was one of several problems wi th
the profit-and-loss statements.

Q. Because they overlapped periods?

That was one of the problems.

A
Q. Other reasons?
A

The other reasons are that the profit-and-loss
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statements are, as | said, for two separate peri ods. One
s a period of two months, one is a period of th ree
months. The numbers, the gross income and every single
ine-item expense and the net profit for the two periods
s 100 percent identical. The only thing differ ent on the
fwo profit-and-loss statements are the dates sta ted for
the periods that they cover.

Q. Okay. And this is just your opinion, you don' t
know if ASC actually did this evaluation, correc t?

A. Well, what | just stated was not an opinion, i t
was a fact.

Q. Let me rephrase that. Your opinion is that
that's why ASC could not move forward with the p laintiff's
RMA because of this impossibility of the profits in 20157

A. That contributes to my opinion.

Q. Right. But you don't know for a fact that ASC
went through this analysis, correct?

A. | don't know for a fact they went through this
analysis.

Q. And you didn't see anywhere in the notes that
they went through this analysis, correct?

A. | saw that they -- there is numerous places in
the notes where they say "no change in circumsta nces."

Q. But you don't -- you didn't see any notes
indicating how they made that determination, cor rect?

THIS IS A ROUGH DRAFT. 35




© 0 N oo o A~ wWw N Bk

N N N N NN B B R R R R R R R
g N W N P O © O N O O M W N B O

A. | don't recall seeing that.
Q. Allright. So we will mark this as Exhibit 3.
(Exhibit 3 marked for identification.)
Q. BY MS. LIM: Before we get into this line, whe n
does an RMA get converted to a loan modification

application per ASC/Wells Fargo's guidelines?

A. Well, in general, a loan modification applicat ion
or documents provided with the request, that the y be
considered as a loan modification application ha ve to be
considered as an application when sufficient and complete

documentation is provided and when there is a
demonstration of a change in circumstance.
Q. Again, at Wells Fargo or per Wells Fargo/ASC
guidelines, when does an RMA become a loan modif ication
application?
MR. GUZZETTA: Objection. Asked and answered.
Q. BY MS. LIM: Not in general.
MR. GUZZETTA: Objection. Asked and answered.
THE WITNESS: And I don't think it would be any
different at Wells Fargo/ASC than at any other p lace.
Q. BY MS. LIM: Why is that?
A. Because if there is a complete loan modificati on
application or complete set of documents that co nstitute a

loan modification application, and there is a

demonstrated -- sufficiently demonstrated change in the
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circumstances, then that becomes a loan modifica
application.
Q. But do you know what the standards are pursuan
to Wells Fargo or ASC in terms of -- let me back
You've made -- you've made a distinction between
an RMA and a loan modification application, corr
A. Yes.

Q. They are two very different things, according

A. Yes.
Q. Do you know if Wells Fargo also holds the same
opinion as you?
A. Yes.
Q. Okay. And how do you know that?
A. It is evident in all the documentation. They
don't -- they -- they don't accept something in
system as a loan modification application unless
conditions exist.
Q. And what are those conditions?
MR. GUZZETTA: Objection. Asked and answered.
THE WITNESS: That would be that there is
sufficient documentation provided from the borro
underwrite a loan modification application and t

sufficient documentation to demonstrate a change

circumstance.
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Q. BY MS. LIM: And without these two conditions,
borrower did not submit a loan modification appl
A.  Without those conditions, it doesn't -- it isn
considered to be a -- an application for a loan
modification.
| want to add with the profit-and-loss statement
just want to state and you may not have any mo
guestions on it anD that's fine, but | just do w
that | didn't tell you all the problems | had wi
profit-and-loss statement. But if you don't wan
the rest, that's okay.
Q. I may ask you about that. Do you know if thes
-- these conditions that you just explained comp
California statute?
MR. GUZZETTA: Objection. Calls for a legal
conclusion, vague and ambiguous.
THE WITNESS: So I'm going to avoid providing an
legal opinions.
Q. BY MS. LIM: In formulating your opinions, isn
it true that you do have to resort to a working
of what the code or California law requires or d
what's complete or not?
A. As a loan servicing practitioner, | do have to

avoid violating the law.

Q. That's not my question. But, so you don't kno
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f Wells Fargo, if these conditions that you are claiming
that Wells Fargo operates under complies with th e current
aw?

MR. GUZZETTA: Objection. Calls for a legal
conclusion.

THE WITNESS: And, again, I'm not an attorney, s o]
'm not going to offer legal opinions at trial.

Q. BY MS. LIM: Okay. All right. So have you se en
this letter before?

MR. GUZZETTA: You are referring to Exhibit 3?

Q. BY MS. LIM: Yeah, Exhibit 3.

A. Yes, | have seen this.

Q. Okay. Was this letter in any way utilized in
forming your opinion that -- let me back up.

Your opinion is that the plaintiff did not submi t
a loan modification application, correct?

A. Correct.

Q. Okay. So was this letter utilized in formulat ing
that opinion?

A. It was one of many letters in communications t hat
went into that, but certainly this letter is par t of that
process.

Q. Okay. Inthe very top, it says, "Call us
immediately so we may respond to your request fo r mortgage
assistance." To your knowledge, what was Wells Fargo
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going to respond to Regina Manantan's request fo
assistance?

MR. GUZZETTA: Objection. Calls for speculation

Q. BY MS. LIM: To your knowledge?
MR. GUZZETTA: Lacks foundation as well.

THE WITNESS: So your question is, what was --

what was Wells Fargo going to respond?

Q. BY MS. LIM: Right. How -- what was Wells Far

- what was Wells Fargo asking homeowner to do?

MR. GUZZETTA: Objection. Calls for speculation

lacks foundation.

THE WITNESS: The -- well, we can take it line b

r mortgage

go

line. First, Wells Fargo is asking the homeowne r to call
Wells Fargo immediately or ASC immediately. In addition
to that, they are indicating that -- let me read the
wording, excuse me. They are indicating that th e borrower
gather certain information and have it ready whe n calling.
Then they are providing the borrower with inform ation
about foreclosure and about the process.

Q. Okay. Do you know if by this time September 1 8,
2015, whether or not a trustee sale was sent?

A. The trustee sale occurred on October 2nd, 2015
So there would have had to have been a notice of trustee
sale -- pardon me, I'm thinking. I'm just doing math in
my mind here. It would had to have been a notic e of
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rustee sale no later than about September 15th.
would have to check the documents to give a comp
accurate answer, but based on the time frame req
filing the notice of sale or recording the notic
prior to the actual trustee sale, the notice of
have had to have been filed at this time.
Q. Okay. Do you know if a sale date had been set
this time of September 18, 20147
A. For a notice of sale to be filed, there has to
a sale date.
Q. Okay. And do you know what the sale date was?
A. The sale the trustee sale -- | don't know what
the date set was at that time, but | do know tha
trustee sale occurred occurred on October 2nd, 2
Q. Okay.
A. Would you mind if | just run over and grab tha
water?
Q. Sure.
MR. GUZZETTA: You sit. I'll get it.
THE WITNESS: Okay.
MR. GUZZETTA: Anybody else want water?
THE WITNESS: Thank you.
Q. BY MS. LIM: You may have alluded to this befo

but in this letter when ASC is telling or statin

have options for you," what were those options?

So |

letely

uired for

e of sale
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know?

acks foundation.

THE WITNESS: 1 don't know specifically what

MR. GUZZETTA: Objection. Calls for speculation

pptions they were referring to, but based on my previous
testimony about requests for mortgage assistance , there
are a number of options that a loan servicer, su bject to
case-by-case limitations, could be considering w hen they
say "We have options for you."

Q. BY MS. LIM: Did you see anything in the
documents to indicate that borrower wanted to mo dify her
loan?

A. | would have to look back at the request for
mortgage assistance, because you indicated that a box was
checked that said borrower wanted modification. And |
don't recall seeing that box checked, so | would have to
check that.

Q. Okay. Did you see anywhere in the notes that ASC
knew that homeowner wanted a loan modification?

A. | believe there were, as | recall, | believe,
there were conversations with a third party, Max im Equity,
where they discussed the possibility of loan mod ification.

Q. Do you know why after ASC had on this very sam e
date indicated to the homeowner that they couldn 't -- that
they were unable to move forward with the applic ation, and
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then in another letter invited homeowner to prov

documents --
A. ldon't.
Q. -- for review?
A. | don't know exactly why.

Q. Well, in your expertise, do you know why this
would happen?

A. In general, there can be numerous requests for
mortgage assistance from the same borrower. And
requests are generally responded to. Sometimes
response to one set of documents is generated at
time as a response to a new set of documents. S
may be a set of documents that came in on the --

just take a different set of dates to not confus

But if a set of documents came in on the 15th of

April on a different loan, let's say, and there
response generated to those, that response might
someone's mailbox on the 1st of May. And then't
have just submitted additional documents on the
April, and they may get another response to that
submission.

So, in general, servicers will respond to each
set of documents or each circumstance rather tha

one all inclusive letter about everything.

Q. Okay. Do they generally do this when there is
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already a trustee sale date set?

A. When you say "do this,” you mean?

Q. Well, invite the borrower to submit documents or
respond to the borrower's request for mortgage a ssistance
during a time where there is already a sale date set?

A. A loan servicer wants to get a borrower to get
current on their payments, generally. The loan services
are generally under a lot of -- or generally bei ng
nfluenced to try to get loans current and try t o keep
borrowers in their properties. So the fact that someone
has a notice of trustee sale recorded or that th ere is a
trustee sale auction date set doesn't mean that a loan
servicer is going to shut the door and say, "We are not
going to consider any further requests for assis tance."”

If anything, in some cases, that might be when a
borrower needs assistance more than at other tim es.

Q. So based on this letter, is it reasonable, in
your opinion, for the homeowner to believe that she was
being reviewed for a loan modification?

A. No.

Q. And why is that?

A. Well, at this point in time, nothing here is
indicating that she is being reviewed for a loan
modification.

Q. Okay. By the way, have you ever spoken with
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Erica Carrillo?
A. Never.

Q. So you see the statement, "Call us today"?

A. Yes.

Q. "Because you are currently in the foreclosure
process. You have limited time to receive assis tance
before foreclosure sale is scheduled." To your knowledge,
f the within letter was mailed on September 18t h, 2015,
approximately how many days did Regina Manantan have until

the sale of her property?

A.  Well, if it was mailed on the 18th, | don't kn ow
when she received it.

Q. Okay. Well, let's give her five days.

A. So.

Q. Let's say she received it on the 23rd.

A. So if a person receives a letter on the 23rd a nd
their property is scheduled for a trustee sale o n the 2nd
on the following month, then they would have app roximately
eight days --

Q. Eight days, okay.
A.  -- prior to the sale.
Q. And the letter continues, "That's why you must
call us immediately. We will work with you to h elp

prevent foreclosure if we cn."”

MR. GUZZETTA: Objection. The document sphakers

THIS IS A ROUGH DRAFT. 45




© 0 N oo o A~ wWw N Bk

N N N N NN B B R R R R R R R
g N W N P O © O N O O M W N B O

tself.

Q. BY MS. LIM: To your knowledge, on September

18th, 2015, did Wells Fargo have the ability to stop the
foreclosure of plaintiff's property before Octob er 2nd,
P0157?

A. Aloan servicer can instruct a trustee to
postpone a trustee sale.

Q. So it was possible?

A. And that is depending on the -- who they are
working for, because a loan serviceer is servici ng a loan
on behalf of someone else, as is my understandin g here.

Q. Okay. Who was the loan servicer servicing the
loan on behalf of?

A. 1 would have to look at the documents. | don' t
recall. But there is a -- | believe there is an
investment trust or something that they were ser vicing it
on behalf of.

Q. So based on the loan owner, did Wells Fargo in
this case have the ability to -- to postpone the sale
date?

A. | don't know what their agreement was with the
owner of the loan.

Q. Do you have any reason to believe that after
September 18th, 2015, Wells Fargo Bank could not stop the
sale of plaintiff's property on October 2nd, 201 57
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A. The limitations that would prevent them from

stopping a sale, that | can think of immediately , would be
f the instructions they have from the owner of the loan
don't allow them to do that. Otherwise, I'm -- otherwise,
'm not able to think of anything, as | sit here right
how, that would stop them from being able to sto p the
sale.

Q. But you don't know what the agreement was betw een
the owner and the servicer, correct?

A. That's correct.

Q. Okay. Now, you mark yourself as a foreclosure --
an expert in the foreclosure process, correct?

A. | don't.

Q. You don't. So what do you hold yourself out t o,
to be an expert in servicing?

A. In addition to loan origination and trustee
investment, | have expertise in loan servicing a nd part of
that does include the loan servicer's interactio n with the
foreclosure trustee, because obviously, as a loa n
servicer, we are frequently interacting with the
foreclosure process. So my expertise is in loan servicing
and to the extent that | need to know about the trustee
sale and the trustee's obligations and how trust ee works
and how the loan servicer's interaction with the trustee
is, | have expertise in that area. I've never a cted as
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foreclosure trustee, so | couldn't opine as to a
duties.

Q. Okay. Did you see any indication that Wells
Fargo was attempting to postpone the trustee sal

A. | don't recall seeing anything indicating that
they were postponing the trustee sale date.

Q. Is it a difficult process to delay a foreclosu
sale?

A. That would again depend on a loan servicer's
internal procedures and, again, depend on their

with the owner of the loan.

Q. Do you know what the enternal procedures are o

ASC?

A.  With?

Q. In this context.

A. With respect to postponing a foreclosure sale,
don't know what the procedures are.

Q. Is there a reason why you didn't review the
agreement between Wells Fargo/ASC and the owner
loan?

A. My main task was to review documents relative
the request for mortgage assistance and relative
direct servicing of the loan by the servicer. |

really -- | wasn't really requested to provide o

the relationship between the loan servicer and t

trustee's

e date?

re

agreement

of the

to
to the
‘'m not
pinions on

he owner
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pf the loan.
Q. Was it ever provided to you? And I'm referrin g

o the pooling of servicing agreement.

A. No.

Q. What about the prospectus, was that ever provi ded
to you?

A. No.

Q. So you haven't reviewed the PSA or the

prospectus, correct?

A. | haven't reviewed the pooling and servicing
agreement and | haven't reviewed the prospectus, that's
correct.

Q. Okay. I'm going to pose a hypothetical. If

the -- if in the agreement between the servicer and the
owner that the owner could not allow postponemen t of the
trustee sale, can the servicer postpone the sale ?

MR. GUZZETTA: Because it is a hypothetical, I'm
going to have to object that it's an incomplete
hypothetical. But you can answer, Joffrey, if y ou can
can.
THE WITNESS: So I'm going --
Q. BY MS. LIM: I'll rephrase. It was poorly
stated.

If there was an agreement between the owner and

the servicer that the servicer could not postpon e a sale,
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a trustee sale that was already set, are there a ny
circumstances under which the servicer could pos tpone the
sale?

MR. GUZZETTA: Objection. Incomplete
hypothetical, calls for speculation.

THE WITNESS: | want to be careful not to give a
egal opinion. But I'll say that if a servicer has an
agreement with the owner of the loan where the s ervicer is
prohibited from postponing the trustee sale, I'm not aware
of any circumstance where the servicer could ele ctto
postpone it without the permission of the owner of the
loan.

And | would give exceptions to operations of law
because, for example, if a bankruptcy is filed, there
would be no choice but to postpone it, or risk v iolating
law, or if certain types of injunctions are fill ed. But
I'm not at this moment, as | sit here today, abl eto
identify a situation where a loan servicer could just make
their own decision to postpone a trustee sale in conflict
with their instructions from the owner of the lo an.
That's a very good question, by the way.

Q. BY MS. LIM: What if -- what if the borrower h ad
submitted all the supporting documentation for a loan
modification application, could a servicer then postpone
the sale?
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MR. GUZZETTA: Objection. Just let me object.

Sorry. Calls for speculation and incomplete hyp othetical.
THE WITNESS: And to clarify your question, is

your question, what if a borrower has submitted all the

required documentation for a loan modification a nd there

s sufficient evidence of a change of circumstan ce, under

that circumstance, could the -- could the loan s ervicer

unilaterally decide to postpone the sale at that time? Is

that your question?

Q. BY MS. LIM: That could be the first part of t he
guestion.
A. Okay. And, again, | am going to qualify my

answer by saying | think that's a legal opinion, SO0

whatever | say, you know, check with a qualified attorney,

please.

But as a practitioner, my feeling would be if |

was servicing a loan for the owner of the loan a nd the

owner said, "I cannot postpone trustee sales wit hout their

consent or cannot postpone them at all,” and the na

complete loan modification application came in t hat was

complete and it demonstrated a change of circums tances, in

the case of where there was previous loan modifi cation

application denials, | would think that would co me under

the part of my answer before, was that by operat ion of

law. Because my understanding is that at that p oint, we
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couldn't proceed with the trustee sale.
Q. Okay. So --

A. And | would want to finish my answer by saying

that in addition to that, | would really have to check, as
a servicer myself, I'd have to check with counse I, because
'm also not sure what the limitation is as to h ow -- how
much time before a trustee sale that complete ap plication
has to be in in order to prevent him.

Q. Well, do you know if Wells Fargo or ASC has an
internal guideline as to how many days a complet e loan
modification application has to be submitted pri or the
sale?

A. ldon't know.

Q. You don't know. Do you know in this case if t he
borrower ended up submitting a full loan modific ation
application before the sale date?

A. They did not.

Q. And what did you rely on to make that
determination?

MR. GUZZETTA: Objection. Asked and answered.
THE WITNESS: 1 relied on the request for
mortgage assistance that was provided on Septemb er 17th,
either signed or provided on September 17th, | f orgot at
this point, but something occurred on September 17th. And
then also | looked at the documents that were su bmitted
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around that same time in connection with that re
mortgage assistance.

Q. BY MS. LIM: Either before or after September
17th?

A. | believe they were either on or shortly after
September 17th. And, again, if | could check th

exhibits, | could look through them and tell you
accurately.

Q. This whole thing with complete loan modificati
application, are those conditions located anywhe
California's statute or law?

MR. GUZZETTA: Objection. Calls for a legal
conclusion.

Q. BY MS. LIM: Do you know?

MR. GUZZETTA: Lacks foundation.

THE WITNESS: Well, again, I'll qualify my answe
by saying that I'm not going to give legal opini
trial. And | also would say that whatever | say
practitioner, a loan servicer practitioner, and
an attorney because I'm not an attorney. But my
understanding is that in the requirements that w
required to work under are that -- that --

Q. BY MS. LIM: I'm listening.

A. That a -- in order to be considered a loan

modification application, there has to be a -- i

guest for

more

on

rein

ons at
is as a

as not as

e are

t has to
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be a complete application. And in the case of r
repeat requests where a loan modification applic
been denied and then there is another new reques
mortgage assistance with a new interest in a loa
modification application, that there has to be a
significant change in circumstances demonstrated
that application has to be considered or needs t
considered.

Q. Right. | understand that part of your theory.
Would you agree that if the sale of the borrower
property proceeded on November 2nd, 2015, that i
intent of Wells Fargo to sell their property?

A. My understanding is that the sale occurred on
October 2nd, 2015.

Q. Okay. October 2nd, 2015.

A. Could you ask the question again? I|I'm sorry.

Q. Would you agree that if the sale of the owner’
property proceed on October 2nd, 2015, that it w
intent of Wells Fargo to sell their property?

MR. GUZZETTA: Objection. Calls for speculation

as to what what Wells Fargo intended.

Q. BY MS. LIM: Do you know?

| don't know what their intent was.

A
Q. Okay.
A

| can say that generally loan servicers procee

epeat,
ation has
t for

n

before

o0 be

t was the

as the
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with a foreclosure process because they are atte

recover the money that was loaned.

Q. Okay. Is it your opinion that Wells Fargo Ban
acted negligently when it sold homeowner -- or p
property on October 2nd, 2015?

A. No.

Q. Is it your opinion that on September 18, 2015,
that Erica Carrillo knew that homeowner's proper

going to be sold on October 2nd, 20157

and lacks foundation as to what Ms. Carrillo kne

point in time.

Q. BY MS. LIM: I'm going to -- if Wells Fargo
always intended to sell plaintiff's property on
2nd, 2015, why did Erica Carrillo ask for monthl
income from each borrower?

MR. GUZZETTA: Objection. Incomplete

hypothetical, lacks foundation, calls for specul
to why Ms. Carrillo did anything.

Q. BY MS. LIM: Do you know why?

A. Well, I -- your question says -- your question
is -- begins with, if Wells Fargo intended to se
borrower's property. Wells Fargo didn't own the

borrower's property, so I'm not understanding ho

MR. GUZZETTA: Objection. Calls for speculation

THE WITNESS: Yeah, | don't know what she knew.

mpting to

laintiff's

ty was

w at any

October

y gross

ation as

Il the

w they can
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sell it.
Q. Well, the servicer/the owner or the owner of t
oan?
A.  Well, the owner of the loan can't sell the
borrower's property.
Q. Okay. If they always intended -- if they had
ntended to foreclose on a property on October 2
why was this letter of September 18, 2015, gener
nviting owner to provide documents?
MR. GUZZETTA: Objection. Calls for speculation
Q. BY MS. LIM: For what we can presume a loan
modification application?
MR. GUZZETTA: Objection. Calls for speculation
lacks foundation, incomplete hypothetical, both
Ms. Carrillo or Wells Fargo intended and to what
presume.
THE WITNESS: | don't know, because | can't
testify as to the loan servicer's intentions. B
tell you that, as a loan servicer myself, we wil
to try to work out a loan or do whatever we can
to avoid a foreclosure sale and the related prob
there is a way to work it out to get the loan, g
borrower to start making payments again and get

borrower current and cause the loan to stay, as

loans in our portfolio of loans we are servicing

he

nd, 2015,

ated

as to

you can

ut | can

| continue
to attempt
lems if

et the

the

one of the

rather
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than lose it and have it turn into a foreclosure

Q. BY MS. LIM: Okay. So, well, based on that,

then, do you know at this time of September 18th , 2015,
were there any programs for the borrower to avoi d
foreclosure?

A. | don't know exactly what programs may have
existed for this borrower. And I'm not sure tha t the loan
servicer had all the questions -- all the inform ation they
needed to make that determination, which may be -- which
would be a logical reason why they are asking fo r the
information.

Q. Okay. Well, what programs were generally
available?

A. Well, that would go back to my previous testim ony
which would be loan modification, forebearance w ithout
loan modification, shortsale, deed in lieu of fo reclosure,
referral to counseling agencies and possibly del aying
various actions until the borrower is able to se Il the
property.

Q. That's how | thought you were going to answer.

A. And that's not all of them, but those are some of
them.

Q. Okay. Do you know what that HAMP modification
Is?

A. Yes.
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Q. Was that an option for this borrower?

A. | believe that the March 2015, denial, that HA
had also been considered and they had been turne
HAMP.

Q. Do you know why they were turned down for HAMP

A. My understanding is the reason was that their
oan balance was higher than the maximum amount
be modified under the HAMP program.

Q. Okay. So they were denied under HAMP. Were t
-- was the homeowner eligible for any other prog
terms of loan modification?

A. They were denied, but my understanding is they
were also considered for another loan modificati
other than HAMP.

Q. And what program is that?

MP

d down for

that can

hey

rams in

on program

A. | believe it was an internal Wells Fargo progr am,
but | would have to check back on the documents to know
for sure.

Q. Which document would tell you whether or not t hey
were being reviewed or considered for an interna | Wells
Fargo loan modification?

A. | believe the printouts and the -- the printou ts
from the -- there is various screen prints from the Wells
Fargo loan servicing system that show the action s taken at
the time of the denial, and | believe that would contain
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the information.

Q. So it would indicate the name of the program t hat
the borrower would be considered for?

A. | believe. I'd have check after reviewing it.

Q. Off the top of your head, do you know the name of
the program?

A. | don't.

Q. So because of the loan balance of plaintiff's
oan, is it your opinion that she would never be eligible
for a HAMP loan modification?

A. No.

Q. It is not your opinion?

A. That's not my opinion.

Q. In terms of a HAMP loan modification, based on
what you know to be the requirements, is she eli gible for
a HAMP loan modification?

A. My understanding is that at the time of the Ma rch
denial, March 2015 denial and through October 2n d, 2015,
that her loan balance was higher than the maximu m that can
be modified under the HAMP program.

Q. So thenitis your testimony that based on tha t,
she would never be entitled or eligible for a HA MP loan
modification?

MR. GUZZETTA: Objection. Misstates his
testimony.
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THE WITNESS: Yeah, never is a different period

of time than March through October 2015.

Q. BY MS. LIM: Do you know what the original loa n
palance was?

A. | would have to look at the records.

Q. If | submitted to you that it was at least

$750,000, would she be eligible for a HAMP loan

modification?

A. | would have to check the exact amount that's the
maximum that can be modified under HAMP. It is somewhere
in the -- it is somewhere in the 700s, but | don 't have it

in front of me.
Q. Okay. I believe the maximum loan balance is
725,000. So if borrower's loan balance exceeded the
maximum amount pursuant to HAMP, she is not elig ible for a
HAMP, correct?
A. That's my understanding.
Q. Going back to -- so if borrower's loan balance
exceeded the maximum loan balance required under HAMP, why
was she being reviewed for HAMP?
MR. GUZZETTA: Objection. Calls for speculation :
lacks foundation. You can answer if you know ca n.
THE WITNESS: In general, in both in loan

servicing and in lending in general, if sufficie nt

information is provided and the circumstances ar e
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sufficient for somebody to be considered for a | oan
modification, then it would be normal to proceed with that
review and then make a determination.
So in this case, they may have taken in -- and,

again, I'm speculating. | don't know for sure w hat the
circumstance was. But, in general, they may hav e taken it
nto the process to show they they did evaluate it and
then make a determination that the loan amount w as too
high to be modified under that circumstance.

Q. BY MS. LIM: Isn't that something that could b e
determined early on?

A. Well, I think that taking in the application a Iso
does -- provides what did occur here, which it g ives the
-- gives the servicer the chance to look at othe r options
as well.

Q. Do you know when the servicer decided to look at
other options for this borrower?

A. | would have to check the documents to see. | t
is probably in the loan servicing notes and also it would,
| believe, it would be reflected in that screen printout
that | was referring to.

Q. Okay. Inthe September 18th, 2015, letter we
marked as Exhibit 3, it does indicate that the p roperty is
in foreclosure. Do you know of any internal gui deline by
ASC that requires the sale date to be included i n that
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etter?
A. I am not aware of any guideline by ASC that
requires a date of foreclosure sale to be includ edina
etter like this.
Q. Do you think foreclosure sale date should have
pbeen included in a letter like this?
A. No.
Q. Why not?

A. The foreclosure process is established to

separate foreclosure from the loan servicer, to some
extent, so that a borrower receives the protecti on of
being able to find out about trustee sales dates directly
from the foreclosure trustee, which is not a loa n
servicer. So to put a date like that in a lette rlike
this might -- well, it would not be as accurate as the
borrower being able to contact the trustee direc tly and

find out when the foreclosure sale date is.
MR. GUZZETTA: Counsel, when we get a chance, ca
we take a bathroom break?
MS. LIM: Just one more question.
MR. GUZZETTA: Yeah, that's fine.
Q. BY MS. LIM: In that letter, was it required t
the trustee contact information be included?

MR. GUZZETTA: Objection. Calls for a legal

conclusion, lacks foundation.

hat
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THE WITNESS: I'm not aware of any requirement

that the trustee sale contact information be inc luded in
the letter soliciting information for -- forar equest for
mortgage assistance.

Q. BY MS. LIM: Do you think it should be include d
n a letter such as that?

MR. GUZZETTA: Objection. Asked and answered.

Q. BY MS. LIM: And I'm referring to trustee sale or
the trustee, the foreclosing trustee information

A. Well, the foreclosing trustee information is
public record and it is required by law to be pu blic
record. And, again, that is so that all parties have
access to it whether or not the loan servicer el ects to or
attempts to provide it. So the proper place for the
borrower to get trustee information and sale dat e
information is from the foreclosure trustee.

MS. LIM: Okay. Do you want to take a break?
MR. GUZZETTA: Yeah.
(Off the record.)

Q. BY MS. LIM: Okay. Can you tell me about your
education beginning with high school?

A. Yes. | -- after completing high school, | too k
some years of study at California State Universi ty
Northridge, did not finish a degree program ther e. And
then the bulk of my education has been seminars, classes
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ndustry.
Q.

A
Q.
A

Q.
A.

Q.

A.
Q.

and other aggregation | received through the mor tgage

You don't have a degree?
Not a college degree, no.
So what, just a high school degree?

That's the only formal type of degree of that

nhature that | have.

And where you didn't attend law school, correc t?
| did not.
And you don't intend to offer any legal opinio ns

at trial, correct?

Correct.

And you regard yourself as an expert in loan

modification applications, correct?

A. That's one area, yes.

Q. Okay. Are you a landlord?

A. Yes.

Q. Are you familiar with the term "unlawful
detainer"?

A. Yes.

Q. Have you ever evicted tenants?

A. Yes.

Q. On how many occasions?

A. I've been a landlord for 42 years, and | was n ot
prepared to answer that question. It would be v ery
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difficult for me to give you an accurate answer.
require some research and thought. And | apolog
hot prepared for that question.
Q. That's fine. Are you also a hard money lender
A. Correct.
Q. What does it mean to be a hard money lender?
A. Private money loans are hard money loans, both
terms are used for the same thing. It has to do
making or arranging of loans that are made with
non-institutional funds provided primarily by pr
parties and are generally used for the purpose o
loans for borrowers and/or properties that don't
for institutional type loans.
Q. Okay. When were you first contacted by Severs
& Werson regarding your retention in this case?
A. | would estimate that it was approximately fiv
to seven days prior to the date of that retainer
that | showed you.
Q. So around October 10th?
A. And we could verify that by looking at the
billing record that was supplied to you by retai
counsel.
Q. Okay. What I'm going to do is I'm going to ha

you -- these are the list of documents that was

by your counsel.

It would

ize, | was

with the

ivate

f making

qualify

on

e

agreement

ned
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MR. GUZZETTA: Again, I'm not his counsel.
Q. BY MS. LIM: | mean --

MR. GUZZETTA: Wells Fargo's counsel.
Q. BY MS. LIM: Wells Fargo' counsel.

him.
Q. BY MS. LIM: | see, yes.
A. Ms. Lim, can | ask, are you finished with Exhi
3?
Q. Yes.
Okay.

Q. We can look that up later. Okay.

A. I've spoken with Laszlo Ladi regarding this
matter and I've also spoken with Joe Guzzetta re
this meater.

Q. And what did they tell you about the case?

A. They indicated that it was a matter regarding
dispute between a borrower and a loan servicer,
indicated what the nature of the dispute was and
of the allegations were. And they indicated wha
documents they would be sending me to review and
areas they wanted me to consider or look at.

Q. And what areas were those?

A. Those were the areas that | had indicated that

MR. GUZZETTA: He works for me. | don't work fo

bit

So who have you spoken with at Severson & Werson

garding

and they
what some
t

what
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Q.

A.
Q.
A.
Q.

A.
Q.

A.

> 0 » 0 »

had indicated that | have formed opinions on. A

repeat those if you'd like.

We already have a list of those. Did you take

notes during -- was this during a telephone call

Yes.
And did you take notes?
| did not.

Okay. Did you form an opinion during the firs

telephone call --

No.
-- received from Severson & Werson?

What information did you rely upon in accepting

your retention by the defendants in this case?

The -- they had provided me with some of the -

some documentation already. The complaint and,
the response. And then | don't recall what othe
documentation | had received by the time | had r

agreed to the retention.

Q.

Do you intend to review further documents --
Yes.

-- after today?

Yes.

What documents would those be?

Well, I may continue to -- | will continue to

review the documents that have already been prov

nd | can

| believe,
r

eceived --

ided by
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retaining counsel to you. And then | will also be
reviewing the deposition of Mr. Tarter. And I'l | also
review any other depositions or any other docume nts that
emerge in this matter or that become available i n this
matter that might affect my opinion or that migh t be
useful to me.

MR. GUZZETTA: Counsel, | can help here. We wil I
commit that he is not going to be formulating an y new
ppinions after today other than rebutting opinio ns by
Tarter and any other servicing opinions by any o f your
experts you guys put forth. | doubt there will be any,
but to the extent there are.

MS. LIM: Okay.

MR. GUZZETTA: But he is not going to continue
forming opinions about -- you know, we know that rule.

Q. BY MS. LIM: Including today's deposition, can
you -- how many hours have you worked on this ca se?

A. Approximately 16 or 17 hours.

Q. And how many hours do you expect to spend in t he
future on this case?

A. | don't know. Assuming that -- includ